SEIU Local 925 Constitution and Bylaws

Amended at the Leadership Assembly & General Meeting October 11, 2025

Constitution and Bylaws of SEIU Local 925

ARTICLE I – Name of Organization

This organization shall be known as Service Employees International Union, Local 925 (nine twenty five) hereinafter referred to as the "Local".

ARTICLE II – Jurisdiction and Object

<u>Section 1. Jurisdiction</u> This Local shall have jurisdiction over public sector workers in Washington State and others as approved by the International Union in accordance with the International Constitution and Bylaws except where the International Union has granted such jurisdiction to the other Chartered Locals.

<u>Section 2. Object</u> The object of the Local shall be to organize all employees within its jurisdiction; to achieve for its members fair wages, hours and working conditions, together with active participation in the policies and operations of their work places; to promote recognition and respect for the value of its members work; and to follow democratic principles.

ARTICLE III - Membership

<u>Section 1. Membership Eligibility</u> Eligibility for membership in this Local shall be as set forth in the International Constitution and Bylaws, and applicants for membership shall comply with and be subject to the requirements imposed by these Bylaws and the International Constitution and Bylaws.

<u>Section 2. Full Membership</u> Full membership is open to any person employed, where the Local has jurisdiction, and a chapter has been authorized by the SEIU 925 board, or any person employed as a regular part-time or full-time staff of the Local. Full membership entitles a person to vote in appropriate officer elections, to nominate and hold office in the Local, to attend meetings, and to receive all other benefits offered to members. Full retiree membership is open to retired persons. A Full Member is one who has a completed membership application and is up-to-date on their required dues obligation.

Section 3. Associate Membership Associate membership is open to a person who is not part of a bargaining unit for which the Local is the exclusive bargaining agent, such as former staff of District 925 or former members. Associate members are not entitled to vote in any of the Local's elections nor hold any office. Associate members may attend Local and SEIU meetings as observers. Associate members may also represent the local at labor federation meetings. The Executive Board may deny associate membership requests.

<u>Section 4. Retiree Membership</u> Retiree membership is open to any retired person who shares the goals of this union and of the labor movement. Retiree members share all the rights and duties of membership except that they may not run for or hold statewide Officer positions within the local. The Executive Board may deny retiree membership requests.

<u>Section 5. No Discrimination</u> There shall be no discrimination against any member, or any applicant for full membership, or associate membership, or retiree membership by reason of race, creed, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, immigration status, ancestry, disability, political belief or affiliation, or age.

Section 6. Organizing Membership Any person excluded from full membership in the Union in bargaining units for which the Union has achieved recognition but does not have a first contract, or unit is currently being organized by the Union, including non-traditional units that do not have a path to collective bargaining. Organizing Members may attend Local and SEIU meetings as observers. Organizing members may also represent the local at labor federation meetings. The Executive Board will authorize chapters eligible for Organizing Memberships. Organizing memberships are only active until members have access to Full Membership status.

<u>Section 7. Honorary Membership</u> The Executive Board shall be empowered to issue honorary memberships in the union. Such honorary members will not be eligible to hold office or to participate or vote in union affairs, elections, ratification of contracts, and the determination of salaries or dues.

ARTICLE IV – Membership Rights

<u>Section 1. Member Rights</u> Full members in good standing of the Local shall have the following rights, among others as outlined in these Bylaws:

- the right to nominate candidates or vote in elections or referendums of the Local;
- the right to attend membership meetings and to participate in the deliberations and voting upon the business of such meetings;
- the right to meet and assemble freely with other members and to express views, arguments or opinions; and to express at meetings views upon candidates in an election of the local or upon any business properly before the meeting;
- the right to information concerning the conduct of the local union business.

ARTICLE V - Officers and Duties

<u>Section 1. Officers</u> The officers of the Local shall consist of a President, an Executive Vice-President, a Secretary-Treasurer, a first and second Vice-President and the members of the Executive Board and Trustees. Additional Vice-President positions may be created by the Executive Board in order to provide leadership positions for officers of locals that merge or affiliate with the Local.

Section 2. President Duties

- (a) The President shall be the principal executive officer of this organization and, subject to the oversight of the Executive Board, shall supervise, conduct and control all of the business and affairs of this organization and its officers and employees, and shall carry out the policies set by the Executive Board. The President shall have the power to hire, suspend, or discharge all personnel. The other duties of the President shall include: to preside at all meetings of this union and conduct same in conformity with these Bylaws and the International Constitution and Bylaws; to execute the laws and orders thereof; to vote on all questions whenever their vote will affect the result; to appoint all committees; unless otherwise provided for, of which committees they shall serve on by virtue of office; to be a delegate to all conventions and meetings where the union is entitled to representation; to perform executive level leadership responsibilities that are necessary to move the Union forward in its work and mission, including but not limited to contract bargaining, political lobbying, campaign strategy, planning and program implementation, staff and leader training; and to perform all other duties as may be assigned by the Executive Board or membership. The President along with the SecretaryTreasurer shall have the authority to sign checks and documents for or on behalf of the Local.
- (b) The President shall be the first delegate to all conventions to which the Local is entitled to send delegates.
- (c) The President shall be a full-time employee of the Local and their salary and other compensation shall be set by the Executive Board.

Section 3. Executive Vice President Duties

- (a) The Executive Vice President shall be the second executive officer of this organization and shall report to and assist the President in the operation of the Union. The EVP shall supervise staff and perform other executive level leadership responsibilities that are necessary to move the Union forward in its work and mission, including but not limited to contract bargaining, political lobbying, campaign strategy, planning and program implementation, staff and leader training and to perform other high level organizational duties as needed.
- (b) The Executive Vice President shall serve in place of the President in their absence and shall assume the Presidency if the President is unable to complete their term. The Executive Vice President shall be a full-time employee of the Local and their salary and other compensation shall be set by the Executive Board.
- (c) The Executive Vice-Presidents shall serve as delegate to all conventions to which the Local is entitled to send delegates provided there are delegate slots available.

Section 4. Secretary-Treasurer Duties

(a) The Secretary-Treasurer shall keep a correct and impartial record of the proceedings of each meeting of the union and the leadership bodies and shall be responsible for all financial records and transactions. The other duties of the Secretary-Treasurer shall include: to receive and disburse all funds under the direction of the Executive Board; to prepare an annual financial report for the membership; to prepare a monthly financial report for the Executive Board; to keep open for inspection by any member of the organization its accounts; all other duties as may be assigned by the Executive Board or membership or specified by these Bylaws and the International Constitution and Bylaws. In addition, the Secretary-Treasurer shall prohibit business or financial interests of its officer and agents, in conflict with the fiduciary obligation of such persons to the organization. The Secretary-Treasurer along with the President shall have the authority to sign checks on behalf of the union. The Secretary-Treasurer shall promptly forward to

- the International Treasurer copies of all annual audit reports and copies of all financial reports setting forth a statement of liabilities and a statement of receipts and disbursements which are required by law.
- (b) The Secretary-Treasurer shall be the second delegate to all conventions to which the Local is entitled to send delegates.
- (c) The Secretary-Treasurer shall be a full-time employee of the Local and their salary and other compensation shall be set by the Executive Board. In addition to the Secretary-Treasurer duties outlined above, the Secretary-Treasurer shall perform executive level leadership responsibilities that are necessary to move the Union forward in its work and mission, including but not limited to contract bargaining, political lobbying, campaign strategy, planning and program implementation, staff and leader training as assigned by the President.

Section 5. Member Vice- President(s) Duties

- (a) Member Vice-Presidents shall be full dues paying members currently in an SEIU 925 chapter. Member Vice-Presidents will be members of the Executive Committee of this organization that.convenes between Executive Board meetings to transact business and make timely decisions that cannot wait for full Board meetings.
- (b) Lead committees of the Executive Board and assist the President in high level functions of the Union to move the Union forward in its work and mission, including but not limited to serving as spokesperson, leading actions, political lobbying, and mentoring and training as needed.
- (c) Serve as a representative, with full voting rights on labor boards, conferences, conventions, or other functions, if designated to do so by the President,
- (d) Vice-Presidents shall serve as delegates to conventions to which the Local is entitled to send delegates provided there are delegate slots available.

ARTICLE VI - Executive Board; Composition, Powers and Duties

Section 1. Composition of Executive Board. The Executive Board shall consist of the President, Executive Vice President, Secretary-Treasurer, Vice President(s), and representatives from the four (4) divisions of the Local (Higher Education, K-12 Education, Government/Nonprofit, Early Learning) as follows: each division will have one (1) board member for each four hundred (400) members. Each geographic region within each division will be allocated at least one (1) member on the executive board.

The Early Learning Division shall also have two at-large representatives from among the license exempt family child care providers. The Retiree Chapter shall also be eligible to have one representative on the Executive Board.

<u>Section 2. Election of Executive Board Members.</u> Executive Board members shall be elected by the general membership of the division of the Local which they represent. In the case of the K-12 Education sector, the Executive Board members shall be elected by the K-12 members in their geographical area as defined below. Executive Board members will serve three (3) year terms and must remain a member in good standing for the full term.

The K-12 Education sector shall be divided into geographical areas with members elected to represent that region based on numerical strength: North King/South Snohomish County; Southeast King County; East King County; Olympic Peninsula; Snohomish County; Skagit/Whatcom Counties; and Southwest Washington.

In the case of the Early Learning Division which includes center and home-based care, Executive Board members shall be elected by the following regions based on numerical strength: Northwest, Southwest, King, East and mid state.

The Higher Education Division shall include one representative for each 400 members in the combined higher education chapters. The division shall also have one at-large representative from among the university faculty.

The Retiree Representative shall be directly elected by members of the Retiree Chapter.

The Executive Board may create additional positions on the Board in order to provide leadership positions for officers of locals that affiliate with the Local. Prior to an officer election, the Board may re-designate the geographical definitions and numbers of seats based on changes in membership numbers and distribution. The Board shall re-designate seats in such a manner as to assure fair representation for all parts of the Local.

Section 3. Authority and Power of Executive Board. Except as may be otherwise provided by these Bylaws, the Executive Board is authorized and empowered to set the general policies of the Local and to adopt a budget for the Local. It shall have the authority to manage, invest, expend, contribute, use, and acquire Local funds and property in the pursuit and accomplishment of the objectives set forth in the constitution of the International Union and these Bylaws and resolutions adopted in furtherance thereof. The Executive Board is hereby empowered, in addition to such other general powers conferred by these Bylaws to:

- (3.1) make or change, subject to disapproval by the membership, rules and regulations not inconsistent with these Bylaws or the International Constitution and Bylaws for the management and conduct of the affairs of this Local;
- (3.2) set the salary and other compensation of the President, Executive Vice President and Secretary- Treasurer and to approve their reasonable expenses and the reasonable expenses of other officers.
- (3.3) provide for the employment of attorneys, accountants, and such other special or expert services as may be required for the organization; secure an audit of the books of this organization by a certified public accountant at least once year;
- (3.4) on behalf of the Local, its officers, employees or members, initiate, defend, compromise, settle, arbitrate, release or pay the expenses and costs of any legal proceedings or actions of any nature, if in its judgment it shall be necessary or desirable to protect, preserve, or advance the interests of the organization;
- (3.5) confirm appointments of the President to fill all vacancies in elected offices which occur during the term of such office in accordance with ARTICLE IX;

- (3.6) transact all business and manage and direct the affairs of the Local except as may otherwise be herein provided; delegate, when necessary, any of the above powers to any officer for specific and temporary purposes and on condition that the action of such officer or representative be ratified by the Executive Board;
- (3.7) lease, purchase, or otherwise acquire in any lawful manner for and on behalf of the organization any and all real estate or other property, rights and privileges whatsoever deemed necessary for the prosecution of its affairs and which the organization is authorized to acquire at such price or consideration and generally on such terms and conditions as it thinks fit, and at its discretion pay thereof either wholly or partly in money or otherwise, subject to specific authorization at a membership meeting for such expenditures, excepting for routine expenditures not of a substantial nature;
- (3.8) sell or dispose of any real or personal estate, property, rights or privileges belonging to the organization whenever in its opinion the Union's interests would thereby be promoted, subject to approval (except as to form) at a membership meeting;
- (3.9) create, issue and make deeds, mortgages, trust agreements, contracts, and negotiable instruments secured by mortgage or otherwise as provided by resolution of the membership, and do every other act or thing necessary to effectuate the same;
- (3.10) create trusts, the primary purpose of which is to provide benefits for the members or their beneficiaries, and terminate and effectuate the same, all subject to approval (except as to form) by the membership;
- (3.11) determine the membership eligible to vote on agreements and strikes and the composition of other membership meetings and adopt rules and regulations concerning the conduct thereof not inconsistent with the International Constitution or these Bylaws;
- (3.12) determine the manner in which referendums shall be held;
- (3.13) affiliate this Local with other bodies or organizations as it shall be required to do or which it believes to be in the interest of this Local.
- (3.14) do all acts, not expressly authorized herein, which are necessary or proper in implementation of the above duties for the protection of the property of the Local for the benefit of the organization and members;
- (3.15) review and approve all resolutions and constitutional changes to be voted on by the members prior to membership vote at a regular or special membership meeting; provided, however, constitutional amendments endorsed by five hundred (500) members in good standing need no approval of the Executive Board prior to membership vote at a regular or special membership meeting.

<u>Section 4. Investigation of Breach of Fiduciary Duty.</u> The Executive Board shall have the duty to investigate any alleged breach of fiduciary duty when circumstances so warrant and to take appropriate action if the investigation so merits.

Section 5. Executive Board Meetings. The Executive Board shall hold regular meetings at least quarterly without other notice than this by-law at such regular times as shall be designated by resolution of the Executive Board and may hold other meetings at such time and place as shall be determined by the President. Failure to attend a regular meeting of the Executive Board without notifying the Secretary-Treasurer as to the reason(s) either before or after the meeting constitutes an unexcused absence. A second consecutive unexcused absence or the third unexcused absence during the term of office shall be basis for removal from officer after a hearing.

<u>Section 6. Executive Board Quorum.</u> A majority of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the Board. The action of a majority of the Board present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the action of the Board. In the event of a tie vote, the President shall cast the deciding vote.

<u>Section 7. Board Meetings Open to Members</u>. Meetings of the Executive Board are open to Union members as observers, except when an executive session of the Board is warranted. Members are required to pay for their own expenses when attending Board meetings.

<u>Section 8. Payment of Expenses for Board Members</u>. By action of the Board, members of the Board who are not full-time paid officers or employees of the organization may be paid their expenses, including wages lost, if any, for attendance at each meeting of the board.

Section 9. Executive Board Action between Meetings. As to all matters requiring action by the Executive Board when the Executive Board is not in formal session, the Executive Board may act by E-mail, facsimile, letter, or telephone. When action by the Executive Board is required, the President may obtain same via e-mail, correspondence, or telephone to the members of the Executive Board and such members may take action on the matter brought to their attention in the same manner. Such action so taken by the majority of the members of the Executive Board shall constitute action of the Board as through the Executive Board were in formal session.

Section 10. Executive Board Committees. The Executive Board shall appoint a social and economic justice committee (e.g. EmbRACE), finance committee, organizing committee and committee on political education (Political Action Committee) to assist the Executive Board in these areas of the Local's activity. Other ad hoc committees may be created as needed. Executive Board members shall be appointed by the President to chair each of these committees. The duties of such committees shall be determined by the Executive Board in accordance with the International Constitution and Bylaws.

The International Secretary-Treasurer shall be notified promptly of the composition of the social and economic justice committee, the retiree members committee, the organizing committee, and the committee on political education.

Section 11. Executive Committee. An Executive Committee of the Board shall consist of the President, Executive Vice President, and SecTreasurer, local wide Vice Presidents and two Vice-Presidents from each Division chosen by Division and from the elected Executive Board at the beginning of each term of office. The Executive Committee shall meet between Executive Board meetings to transact business and make timely decisions that cannot wait for full Board

meetings.

ARTICLE VII - Board of Trustees

<u>Section 1. Composition and Duties of Board of Trustees.</u> The Board of Trustees shall consist of the Secretary –Treasurer and four (4) members; one elected from each of the four sectors. It shall be the duty of the Trustees to examine and audit the books of the Local and at least annually take inventory of and verify the securities, investments, bank accounts, and cash funds then on hand. Perform any such duties or tasks assigned by the President or executive board.

<u>Section 2. Access to Information and Responsibilities.</u> The trustees shall have full and free access to all documents, books and other records necessary to conduct their examination. The trustees shall insure that each officer, employee or representative of the Local required to be bonded is at all times bonded in accordance with applicable law. The Secretary-Treasurer of the International Union may direct the increase or decrease in the amount of the bond when they deem it advisable.

ARTICLE VIII – Leadership Assembly: Composition, Powers and Duties

<u>Section 1. Composition of the Leadership Assembly.</u> The Leadership Assembly shall consist of the President, Executive Vice President, and Secretary-Treasurer, Vice President(s), Executive Board members, Trustees, elected member leaders from each chapter or bargaining unit. Each chapter of twenty (20) or more members will have one (1) Assembly member and an additional member for every 200 members above the first 200.

<u>Section 2. Election of Leadership Assembly Members.</u> Leadership Assembly members shall be elected by the members of the chapter or bargaining unit they represent. Chapters are permitted to send alternate delegates to ensure representation.

<u>Section 3. Responsibilities of the Leadership Assembly.</u> The Leadership Assembly shall provide a forum for member education, leadership development and information sharing. Leadership Assembly members are responsible for providing input on the Local's program goals and strategies to achieve them, may act upon any issue affecting the Local's membership, and carry program actions and goals in their chapters.

Section 4. Leadership Assembly Meetings. The Leadership Assembly shall meet no less than once each calendar year. Additional meetings may be held as determined by the President. Elected Assembly member's expenses will be paid by the Union, within policy and guidelines established by the Executive Board. Once every three years in October, a Leadership Assembly meeting shall be held in conjunction with a general membership meeting to accept nominations for officer positions.

<u>Section 5. Leadership Assembly Quorum.</u> A majority of the Assembly shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the Assembly. The action of a majority of the

Assembly present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the action of Assembly. In the event of a tie vote, the President shall cast the deciding vote.

<u>Section 6. Assembly Meetings open to Members.</u> Meetings of the Leadership Assembly are open to the general membership who may attend as observers. Members are required to pay for their own expenses when attending Assembly meetings.

ARTICLE IX – Nominations and Elections

Section 1. Nominations of Officers. Nominations of officers shall take place at a Leadership Assembly Meeting in the month of October of each election year. Nominations may also be submitted in writing to the Elections Committee at least one day prior to the nominations meeting. Reasonable notice of the nominations process and meeting shall be given. No person is eligible to run for President, Executive Vice President, and Secretary-Treasurer or local wide Vice-President who has not been a member in continuous good standing of this Local for a least two years preceding the nomination. Nominated members must present at the meeting at the time of nomination to accept; have given permission to be nominated in writing prior to the meeting or accept the nominations in writing within two days after the meeting. In the event only one candidate is nominated for any office, no election shall be conducted for such office. Such unopposed candidate shall be declared elected by acclamation.

<u>Section 2. Elections Every Three Years.</u> Elections shall be held every three years, during the month of December of each election year. Elected officers shall assume office on January 1 of the next year.

<u>Section 3. Voting at Membership Meeting(s) or Mail Ballot.</u> The election shall be conducted either at membership meeting(s) or through mail ballot as determined by the Executive Board.

<u>Section 4. Elections Committee.</u> The President shall appoint an Elections Committee, none of whom shall be candidates for office, to determine additional voting procedures including the following:

- Members shall receive no less than 30 days notice for elections held at membership meetings. Elections shall be conducted by secret ballot among the members in good standing. There shall be no write-in candidates or proxy voting.
- Officers receiving the highest number of votes shall be declared elected. For those seats
 which have more than one elected member, the winners shall the highest vote getters in
 descending order.
- The Elections Committee shall count the votes and shall report the results to the President and Secretary –Treasurer in writing.

<u>Section 5. Position Vacancies.</u> In the event one of the offices, other than President, becomes vacant, the President shall nominate a member to fill such vacant office for the remainder of the original term. The Executive Board shall vote to confirm the nomination prior to the nominee assuming office. In the event of a vacancy in the office of the President, the Executive Vice President shall assume the position of the President for the remainder of the original term.

Section 6. Officers as Delegates to Conventions. Any officers of the Local elected in conformity with applicable statutes shall be considered eligible delegates to any convention to which the Local is entitled to delegates. If the number of elected officers is less than the number of delegates, then arrangements shall be made for nominations and secret ballot election, if required. If the total number of officers is greater than the number of delegates allowed, then officers shall attend as delegates in the order listed: President, Executive Vice President, and SecretaryTreasurer, First Vice President, Second Vice President, Higher Education Division Seat 1, K-12 Division Seat 1, Local Government /Non-profit Seat 1; Early Learning Seat 1; Retiree Chapter Seat 1; Higher Education Seat 2 and so forth continuing in that descending order. Each seat shall be named by division in numerical order based on the number of votes received by each elected Board member, in descending order.

ARTICLE X – Dues

<u>Section 1. Revenue.</u> The revenues of the Local shall be derived from monthly dues and other fees or sources as may be approved by the Executive Board.

<u>Section 2. Dues Increases</u>. Any increase in the rate of dues or initiation fees or the levying of any general or special assessments that has not been mandated by the International Union Constitution and Bylaws, shall, when required by applicable law, be determined by the Executive Board, subject to the approval of the membership by a secret ballot vote after reasonable notice at a regular meeting or by mail ballot.

In the case of a dues referendum, the Executive Board may appoint an elections committee to establish voting procedures that include but are not limited to the following:

- Written notice shall be mailed to each member at least thirty (30) days prior to the meeting(s) at which the membership will vote on a dues change.
- Voting shall be by secret ballot of the members in good standing and a majority of those voting shall decide the issue.

<u>Section 3.</u> Reasons for Lowered or Waived <u>Dues.</u> The fees and dues of this local may be lowered or waived by the Executive Board for the purpose of organizing and/or accepting into membership persons who have paid up membership or withdrawal cards from another local of the SEIU.

<u>Section 4. Mandatory Per Capita Tax</u>. This Local shall pay per capita tax to the International Union for any person from whom the Local received revenue. The per capita rate shall be set by the International Union.

<u>Section 5. Consequences of Failure to Pay Dues.</u> Any member failing to pay required dues of the Local on or before the last day of the month in which the same are due shall stand automatically suspended from membership and from all rights and privileges of such membership in the Local and in the International union.

<u>Section 6. Member responsibility to Pay Dues</u>. The entire responsibility for the payment of dues to the Local within the time required by the provisions of this article is the sole obligation of each

member individually and cannot be delegated to the Local or any of its representatives or any person, whether they be delegates, shop stewards or others.

ARTICLE XI – Chapter Structure and Membership Meetings

<u>Section 1. Establishment of Chapters and Election of Leaders.</u> Subject to Executive Board approval, a chapter shall be established for each bargaining unit, or for combined bargaining units, or groups of workers with a common employer or industry, who are similarly situated, or for retired members, as approved by the Executive Board. Each chapter shall elect stewards and Leadership Assembly members in accordance with the formula established by these Bylaws. Each chapter shall elect or recruit and appoint worksite leaders and other leadership positions as needed.

<u>Section 2. Chapter Membership Meetings.</u> Each chapter shall be encouraged to hold chapter membership meetings on a regular basis but in no case less than one per year held in the fall. The Executive Board may establish guidelines and incentives for holding those meetings.

<u>Section 3. Special Membership Meetings</u>. Special membership meetings may be called by the President or the Executive Board. Fifty (50) members shall constitute a quorum at any special meeting.

<u>Section 4. Reasonable Notice of Special Membership Meetings.</u> Reasonable notice of special membership meetings shall be sent to each members of the Local. Only such business as is specified in the call for the special meeting shall be considered at the meeting.

ARTICLE XII - Collective Bargaining

<u>Section 1. Authority of Chapter Negotiating Committees.</u> The authority to bargain collectively for the chapter or bargaining unit shall be vested in a Negotiating Committee, which shall consist of members selected from the chapter or bargaining unit and representatives from the Local. The Local shall provide training and staff support for the collective bargaining process.

<u>Section 2. Ratification of Contracts by Chapter Members.</u> The results of any collective bargaining negotiations shall be subject to ratification by the members in the bargaining unit. Upon ratification, a contract shall be signed by the Negotiating Committee and an officer of the Local.

<u>Section 3. The authority to call a strike</u> is vested in the Negotiating Committee with the approval of the Executive Board. In order for a strike to be called, it must be authorized by a ratification vote by two-thirds of those affected members who participate in the vote under the following conditions:

- 1. Timely notice must be given to every affected member that a strike vote is taking place either at meeting(s) called for this purpose or through a mail ballot.
- 2. A minimum of 30% of the affected members must participate in the vote.

3. The chapter leadership may vote to set a higher threshold for member participation in a strike vote if they choose – subject to the approval of the Executive Board.

<u>Section 4. Notification to International Union of Strike</u>. The Local shall not call a strike without previous notification to the International President, or where prior notice is not practicable, without notification as soon as possible after commencement of the strike. If the Local fails to give such notice, the International President may withhold sanction of the strike.

ARTICLE XIII - Responsibility of Members to Local Union

<u>Section 1. Member Obligation to Bylaws and Fellow Members.</u> Every member by virtue of membership in this local is obligated to abide by these Bylaws and the International Constitution and Bylaws with respect to rights, duties, privileges and immunities conferred by them. Each member shall faithfully carry out such duties and obligations and shall not interfere with the rights of fellow members.

Section 2. Authority of the Local Regarding Members. Every member by virtue of membership in the Local authorizes the Local to act as exclusive bargaining representative with full and exclusive power to execute agreements with the employer governing terms and conditions of employment and to act for the member and have final authority in presenting, processing and adjusting any grievance, difficulty or dispute arising under any collective bargaining agreement or out of employment with such employer, in such manner as the Local or its officers deems to be in the best interest of the Local. The Local and its officers and representatives may decline to process any grievance, complaint or dispute, if in their reasonable judgment such grievance or dispute lacks merit.

Section 3. Responsibilities of Members toward Officers and Representatives of the Local. No member shall interfere with the elected officers or representatives of this organization in the performance of their duties and each member shall, when requested, render such assistance and support in the performance of such duties as may be required of them, provided that this does not interfere with their individual rights as members. Each member and officer shall adhere to the terms and conditions of pertinent collective bargaining agreements and shall refrain from any conduct that would interfere with the performance b the local of its legal or contractual obligations.

<u>Section 4. No Dual Unionism, Disaffiliation or Disestablishment of the Local.</u> No member shall engage in dual unionism or espouse dual unionism or disaffiliation nor shall any member be a party to activity to secure the disestablishment of the local as the collective bargaining representative for any employee.

ARTICLE XIV - Due Process

In order to insure members' protection from the filing of frivolous charges, the following procedures shall apply:

<u>Section 1. Procedures for Members Filing Complaints against Members.</u> Whenever complaints are brought by a member against any member or officer of Local 925, such charges must be

specific and filed in writing in duplicate with the Secretary-Treasurer specifying the nature of the offense involved. A written copy of such charges shall be served on the accused either personally or by registered or certified mail directly to the last known address of the accused at least ten (10) days before the hearing of the charges. In all cases, the charged party shall be given reasonable time to prepare their defense and be afforded a full and fair hearing.

<u>Section 2. Basis for Charges.</u> The basis for charges and remedies shall be governed by the provisions of the Constitution and Bylaws of the International Union.

<u>Section 3. Hearing Regarding Charges.</u> The President shall appoint at least one member of the Executive Board as a Hearing Officer, and may appoint additional hearing officers from either the Executive Board or membership.

<u>Section 4. Hearing Decision.</u> The decision of the hearing officers shall be deemed final unless the individual or individuals against whom said decision shall have been rendered files with the Secretary-Treasurer a written request to appeal the decision to the Executive Board of the union within (15) days, in accordance with the provisions of the International Constitution and Bylaws, and further appeals shall with in accordance with the International Constitution and Bylaws. If the member charged or preferring such charges is a member of the Executive Board, they shall not participate in rendering the decision.

Section 5. Member Permitted Counsel. Any member under charges may have an attorney or another member of this local act as counsel, to represent them in the presentation of their defense.

ARTICLE XV – Property Rights

<u>Section 1. Property Titles.</u> The title to all property, funds and other assets of this Local shall at all times be vested in the Executive Board for the joint use of the membership of this Union, but no member shall have any severable proprietary right, title or interest therein.

<u>Section 2. No Member Interest in Property.</u> Membership in this organization shall not vest any member with any rights, title or interest in or to the property of this Local, including the funds of this Local.

ARTICLE XVI - Affiliations

This Local shall affiliate with the state and local labor federations, where these exist, and with the Service Employees State Council and other appropriate divisions, as determined by the International Union.

ARTICLE XVII - Dissolution

This Local cannot dissolve, secede or disaffiliate while there are seven (7) dissenting members. In the event of secession, dissolution or disaffiliation, all properties, funds and assets, both real

and personal, of this Local shall become the property of the International Union. Under no circumstances shall this Local distribute its funds, assets or properties individually among its membership.

ARTICLE XVIII – Bonding

Every officer or representative of this Local who handles funds or other property of this organization shall be bonded in accordance with the requirements of the International Constitution and Bylaws and applicable statues. The amount of bond required of each person shall be ascertained by the Executive Board, and the premium charges shall be paid out of the general funds of the union. The Secretary-Treasurer of the International Union may direct the increase or decrease in the amount of the bond when deemed advisable by the Secretary-Treasurer.

ARTICLE XIX - Savings Clause

If any provisions of these Bylaws shall be modified or declared invalid or inoperative by any competent authority of the executive, judicial, or administrative branch of federal or state government, the Executive Board shall have the authority to suspend the operation of such provision during the period of its invalidity or modification and to substitute in its place a provision that will meet the objections to its validity and that will be in accord with the intent and purposed of the invalid or modified provisions.

If any article or section of these Bylaws should be modified or held invalid by operation of law or by any tribunal of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this these Bylaws or the application of such article or section to persons or circumstances, other than those as to which is has been held invalid or modified, shall not be affected thereby.

ARTICLE XX - Amendments

Section 1. Procedure for Amendments to Constitution and Bylaws. The Constitution and Bylaws of this Local may be amended at a special membership meeting or by mail ballot. Proposed amendments shall be submitted in writing either by the Executive Board or by one-third of all chapters following a majority vote of members in those chapters. The proposed amendment shall be submitted to the membership at least one month prior to the meeting(s) and must receive a two-thirds vote for adoption.

No amendment shall be valid or become effective until approved by the International Union.

<u>Section 2. Subordination of Local Constitution and Bylaws.</u> The Constitution and Bylaws of this Local shall at all times be subordinate to the International Constitution and Bylaws, as it may be amended.

Revised by membership vote on October 11, 2025